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1 ‘f’ St Andrew's Church in Newcastle is an example of the medieval Gothic
‘%ﬁ Style of 15th and 16th century England. This style was revived by the
K}J: architect of St. Andrew's, Henry Vaughan, and other English gothicists of

the late 19th century.

Built in 1883 on a brick foundation, the main part of the church forms
a rectangular shape. Two gabled ells project from the east wall joined together
by the later addition of an undercroft. The structure is built of half-timbered
construction painted green with light buff pargeting. The pattern of the
timbers creates a rectangular module which is continued in the placement of the
windows. The steep gabled roof is capped with an enclosed belfry centered on
the north half of the church. The belfry is sheathed with shingles and green
painted trim. The octagonal spire is crowned with a broach spirelet.

The facade or west wall faces the street on the long side of the rectangle.
An open gabled portico projects from its southwest corner. The portico gable flares
slightly at the bottom edge and is decorated along the eaves by simple barge-
boards. The wide arched entranceway of the portico, framed by two rectangular
arched openings, leads to the church doors. The main wall of the structure is
divided into three horizontal divisions by the timber construction. The top
division, which meets the roofline, contains four casement windows spaced eveily .
along the wall. Their diamond paned glass form three elongated vertically sectioned’
Tudr arched windows. Another projection near the northwest corner continues
the line of: the:main roof with only a light change in the slope. This has a double,
two sectioned window level with the middle horizontal division of timbering. To
the left of this projection, the main wall resumes to include a final two sectioned
window in the top division.

The South wall showing the gable opening is hidden for the most part by a
tall hedge of lilac trees. The eaves of the gable are undecorated. The timber
divisions are of larger scale than those on the west wall, but reduce in size
as they go up the wall. A three sectioned casement window of double height is
centered on the wall. Above is a small single window near the roof peak.

Due to a slight downslope in the site, the rear or east wall has a lower level
not found on the west facade. This projects out as a one story flat roofed
addition nestled between the two original ells. Called the Undercroft, it was
dedicated in 1955. In keeping with the rest of the building, the Undercroft is of
half timber construction with four sets of double eight-paned windows which overlook
the Damariscotta River. Above survives the original church wall, which matches
the west facade. Both ells are gabled, the northeast one being taller and having
its lower roofline level with the main roofline. The southeast ell is smaller and
has a three sectioned window on the second level. Below this window is a smaller
one on the ground level.

The north wall has a timbering design similar to the south wall but contains
no windows.

The interior of St. Andrew's conveys a simple harmony of structure, color,
(see continugtion sheet) i S : : i : : - C
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furnishings and detail. Oak wood is used throughout the interior, and furnishings
including the carved alter and inlaid floor. The seven bays formed by the arched
supports of the roof comprise the nave. The chancel is of two bays, having an

arched roof divided by ribs into square panels. Gold stencilling decorates the
open-timber ceiling of both the chancel and sanctuary. This stencilling, representing
symbols of the crycifixion, was hand painted by Vaughan himself. He tried to make

it a practice to hand paint a part of every church he designed. The beams are

edged with red paint. The walls are plaster.

The focal point of the church is an alterpiece of fine wooden Gothic tracery.
The three part tryptic reredos is painted in deep reds, blues, and golds. The
center painting is a copy of Percegino's "Adoration of the Magi'". The left painting
is a copy of a figure from "el Veroccio's "Baptism of Our Lord" in Florence, while
the right painting is a picture of St. Andrew. These copies were done by John
LaFarge.

St. Andrew's boasts an unusual lectern and baptismal font. The font, located
in the rear of the nave, has a Gothic spire covering. The organ, a tracker—action
Hutchings organ, was installed in 1888 and is considered by organ enthusiasts to
be the finest Hutchings in existence. The organ casework, the most handsome in
the state, was hand carved.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St, Andrew's Church has been called the most beautiful little church
in America. Located on the shores of the Damariscotta River, its name
fits appropriately since the saint was a fisherman. The parish church
is significant because it is the first example of a cottage Gothic
church in the United States. It is also the first church designed
in America by the English Gothicist Henry Vaughan.

Vaughan was born in England in 1846, where he grew up and received
his architectural training under George Bodley, also an English Gothicist,
Vaughan came to the United States in 1881 with the purpose of interpreting
Gothic Architecture in America. His arrival in Boston initiated the
trend toward a return to the Medieval Gothic style.

Vaughan designed several other buildings in Maine. Among them was
Christ Church of 1893 in Dark Harbor; St. James' Episicopal Church in
01d Town, 1894; the Searles Science Building, 1894 and the Hubbard
Library, 1902 both at Bowdoin College  in Brunswick; and St. Mary' s—by—the
Sea in Northwest Harbor in the year 1902.

Vaughan's most famous work was in association with Bodley in the
designing of the cathedral church (S.S. Peter and Paul) in Washington,
D.C. in the early 1900's. Bodley had also crossed the Atlantic and had
established practice in Hartford, Conn. They won the commission for the
cathedral in 1906 and worked on the project together until Bodley's death
in 1907. Vaughan continued the work until his death in 1917.

Story has it that Vaughan hung a small picture of St. Andrew's inside
the national cathedral as a reminder of the first church he designed in
the States.

St Andrew's and the one and a half acres it occupies were a gift of
Mr. and Mrs. William Glidden in 1883. Mr. Glidden himself built the church.
The old parish house was used as a temporary quarters of the Newcastle
National Bank when that building burned down in the Great Fire of 1908.

Important both as an early example of a major style and as the first
such design in America by a leading proponent of that style, St. Andrews
is, as well, a building of great charm felicitously located in beautiful

surroundings.
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